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A small, rectangular, single-story structure, the Waunakee Depot, built in 1896, 
has a gable roof with wide overhanging eaves. Siding is shiplap. At the center 
of the main (northeast) facade is a pavilion with a gabled dormer roof. Gable 
ends of the building and the dormer have carved horizontal supporting members from 
the center of which two smaller supports angle outward, meeting the roof at right 
angles. These are ornamental as well as functional and are original. The wooden 
platform in front of the depot, adjacent to the tracks, was removed and an ornamental 
wire fence installed in its place, separating the building from the tracks as a 
safety measure. Otherwise the depot has never been remodeled in its 81 years.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The establishment of the C&NW railroad depot at Waunakee led to the establishment of 
the small but important community which exists there today. In the late 1860s, the 
Chicago & Northwestern Railroad decided to extend service from Madison to the St. Paul 
area. By 1871 a definite decision had been made to locate a stop on this route at 
the present site of the village of Waunakee.^ Earlier considerations for the site of 
the stop involved other places north of Lake Mendota, and at the time there was 
nothing where Waunakee now stands except a blacksmith shop operated by S. P. Martin.

Two local landholders, George Fish and Louis Bacon, were responsible for the decision 
to have the depot located at the site of present-day Waunakee.^ To do so they had 
to donate land for the railroad right-of-way and put up bonds in the amount of $1500. 
Their efforts paid off handsomely, as a thriving farming village sprang up around the 
Waunakee depot. Since the end of the Civil War, farmers had faced increasing difficulty 

.. in transporting their produce to major markets. Now they had a dependable means of 
transportation for farm produce. Waunakee grew as a commercial and farming center. 
The railroad hauled farm goods to Chicago markets and brought shipments of dry goods 
and machinery from Chicago to eager merchants in Waunakee. This quickly brought 
schools, churches and other aspects of permanent settlement.^ Clearly the placement 
of the C&NW railroad depot at Waunakee led to the establishment, growth and development 
of the thriving and important village of today.

The original depot of 1871 was destroyed by fire in 1896 and the present building 
was erected on the same site later in the year.-* To the people of Waunakee, the 
second depot is as important as the first in the sense that it merely provides 
continuity to the story of the development of their community around the site chosen 
for the railroad stopping place in 1871. The depot itself, out of use for trans­ 
portation purposes since about 1960, is leased by the Waunakee Arts Council. Today, 
through the joint efforts of the Waunakee Historical Society and the Arts Council, the 
depot is undergoing restoration to its original condition and conversion to a museum 
of art and history. It will remain a reminder of Waunakee f s past as well as con­ 
tinuing to serve the community.

1. Waunakee Centennial Book, 27
2. Idem.
3. Koltes and Joseph, 1
4. Idem.
5. Waunakee Centennial Book, 27



Buhlman, An Early History of the Village of Waunakee, n.p., n.d., 27, 29, 31 
Butterfield, Consul W., History of Dane County, Wisconsin, (Chicago, 1880), 611 
Keyes, Elisha W., History of Dane County, (Madison, 1906), 240 
Koltes, James P., The Early History of Waunakee, (Waunakee, 1971), 1, 2, 5, 6. 
Koltes, James and Joseph, Matt, "A Brief History of the Waunakee Depot," Waunakee Arts 

Council, 1975 (typescript), 1
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In the northwest corner of Block 7, Original Plat of Waunakee. Bounded roughly
on the north by Main Street, on the east by the C&NW railroad tracks and right-of-way,
and on the south and west by C&NW right-of-way.
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